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I. Meeting Agenda

Grape King Bio Ltd.

Agenda for the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders

Time: 9:00 a.m. May 30, 2024

Place: No.402, Sec. 2, Jinling Rd., Pingzhen Dist., Taoyuan City, Taiwan (R.0.C.),
(Pingzhen Headquarters)

Method of Convening the Meeting: Physical shareholders meeting

1. Commencement of Meeting

2. Chairman’s Statement

3. Report Items
(1) 2023 Business Report
(2) Audit committee’s Review Report on the 2023 Financial Statements
(3) Report on Remuneration Distribution for Employees and Directors for the Year
2023
4. Matters for Ratification
(1) Adoption of the 2023 Business Report and Financial Statements
(2) Adoption of the 2023 Earnings Distribution
5. Matters for Discussion
(1) To amend the Company’s Articles of Incorporation
(2) To amend the Company’s Rules of Procedure for Shareholders’ Meetings
6. Matters for Election
(1) To elect the Directors

7. Other Matters
(1) To release from non-competition restrictions on Directors

8. Extempore motion

9. Adjournment



Il. Report Items

1. 2023 Business Report

In 2023, the pandemic restrictions in Taiwan started to eased up with many
people returning to their pre-pandemic lifestyles and consumers’ being fully aware
of health-food supplements and nutraceuticals. Grape King Bio continued to expand
its market share, both in Taiwan and globally through its ODM services, with high
quality and innovative products. In 2023 we achieved revenues of NTS 10.64bn,
exceeding the NTS10bn mark for the second consecutive year. Furthermore we were
able to generate an impressive NTS9.81 in earnings per share.

In order to deal with the growing market and production demands, the first
phase of our 4th manufacturing plant, Grape King Bio Park, was officially completed
in Pingzhen Industrial Park. This new facility will provide additional manufacturing
capacity and support for Grape King Bio’s ever evolving and expanding future.

Grape King Bio values not only business performance, but also long term
sustainability. The Company continued with its commitment to corporate
governance, food safety management, internal research and development,
academia-industry collaborations, occupational safety and health, public welfare and
a long term sustainable environment. Grape King Bio obtained the “1S014064
Greenhouse Gas Inventory System” and “Taiwan Intellectual Property Management
System (TIPS) Class A” certifications in 2023. We were also the first company in the
Biotechnology industry to gain the “ISO37001 Anti-bribery Management System”
certification. For the 3" consecutive year, Grape King Bio was also listed as being in
the top 5% of listed companies in Taiwan for its Corporate Governance Evaluation
which is issued annually by the TWSE. These achievements not only demonstrate our
commitment to ensuring and safe guarding shareholder value but also shows our
promise to be a sustainable corporation that practices the concept of “dedicating
ourselves to making society better”.

Under the excellent leadership of Chairwoman Chang-Yeh Tseng, General
Manager Mei-Ching Tseng, as well as the six Sales Consultants, our largest subsidiary

Pro-Partner was once again been ranked as the No.1 domestic MLM company and
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3rd overall in the Taiwan MLM rankings (based on 2023 revenue). Furthermore,
Pro-Partner was ranked 33th on the 2023 DSN Global 100 list of MLM companies.
Grape King Bio not only makes every effort to meet the expectations of
shareholders, stakeholders and customers, but also promotes their values in a
transparent manner. Through our continuous devotion, we are certain that it is
feasible to set a milestone of having a tri-win situation for Grape King Bio, employees
and society. We aim to take our responsibility for global citizens seriously whilst
being a business enterprise, also ensuring sustainable development for the

environment.

Finally, | would like to wish you all good health and happiness in the year of

2024, and beyond.

Chairman: Shenglin Andrew Tseng General Manager: Shenglin Andrew Tseng Chief Accountant: Nick Hung



2. Audit Committee’s Review Report on the 2023 Financial Statements
Description: The Audit Committee’s Review Report is attached as Appendix 1. (page

20).

3. Report on Remuneration Distribution for Employees and Directors

for the Year 2023

Description:

(1) The profit of the Company is NT$1,701,615,433 (i.e., pre-tax profit before
deducting the remuneration of employees and directors). In accordance with
Article 29 of the Articles of Incorporation, it has been proposed that the
Company disburses 8% in cash, amounting to NT$136,129,234, to employees
and 2%, amounting to NT$34,032,308, to directors.

(2) There is no difference between the amount of distribution and the amount of

recognized expenses in 2023.

lll. Matters for Ratification

ltem 1 Proposed by the Board of Directors

Item: Adoption of the 2023 Business Report and Financial Statements.

Description:

(1) The Company’s 2023 Financial Statements have been audited by Ming Yuan
Chung and Yu Feng Huang, Certified Public Accountants of Deloitte & Touche,
and an audit report has been issued.

(2) The Business Report and Financial Statements have been examined by the Audit
committee.

Business Report (Please refer to page 3 to 4)
Financial Statements (Please refer to page 21 to 40)

Resolution:

uonedljney Joj sialle ‘ _—



<

uolssnosig 10} si=1le N

ltem 2 Proposed by the Board of Directors

Item: Adoption of the 2023 Earnings Distribution.

Description:

(1) The Company’s 2023 Earnings Distribution Table was approved by the 16th
meeting of the 20th Board of Directors on February 26, 2024. It was proposed
that the Company disburses cash dividend amounting to NT$1,022,147,874
which is obtained from retained earnings, valued at NT$6.9 per share, and
estimated by rounding down to the dollar unit. The fractional amount will be
included in the Company’s other income. Upon approval during the Annual
Meeting of Shareholders, it is proposed that the Chairman be authorized to
resolve the ex-dividend date, ex-rights date, and other relevant issues.

(2) In the event that the subsequent changes in capital affect the number of
outstanding shares and cause changes in the dividend payout ratio, it is
proposed that the Chairman be authorized to adjust the payout ratio.

(3) 2023 Earnings Distribution Table please refer to Page 41.

Resolution:

IV. Matters for Discussion

ltem 1 Proposed by the Board of Directors

Item: To amend the Company’s Articles of Incorporation.

Description:

(1) To strengthen corporate governance and obey rules of the TWSE, in which case
the number of independent directors shall not be less than one third of the
directors' seats in 2027, amends the Company’s Articles 20 of Incorporation.

(2) To be in line with international standards and increase corporate governance
flexibility, the Dividend Policy in Article 30 of the “Articles of Incorporation”
which states that surplus allocation shall be no less than 60%, propose to amend
the Dividend Policy in Article 30 of the “Articles of Incorporation”, the Board of
Directors is authorized to make a resolution twice a year, i.e. every half year, to

distribute earnings in cash, as well as capital reserves or legal reserves in cash.



(3) Comparison Table on the Amendments to Articles of Incorporation:

Clause After Amendment Before Amendment Explanation
The Company shall have The Company shall have To strengthen corporate
between nine (9) to thirteen | between nine (9) to thirteen governance and obey rules
(13) directors. The number | (13) directors. The number of the TWSE, in which case
of directors is authorized by | of directors is authorized the number of independent
the Board of Directors. The | by the Board of Directors. The | directors shall not be less
term of office shall be three | term of office shall be three than one third of the
(3) years. Directors shall be | (3) years. Directors shall be directors' seats in 2027,
elected from a list of elected from a list of amends the Company’s
candidates and appointed candidates and appointed Articles of Incorporation.
by the shareholders during | by the shareholders during
the shareholders’ meetings. | the shareholders’ meetings.
Directors may also be Directors may also be
re-elected for succeeding re-elected for succeeding
terms. The number of terms. The number of
independent directors shall | independent directors shall
not be less than three, and | not be less than three, and
shall not be less than one shall not be less than one

Article | third of the directors' seats. | fifth of the directors' seats.

20 The election of directors and| The election of directors and

supervisors entails a
nomination system. The
nomination, notice and
other matters relating to the
candidates for directors and
supervisors shall be in
accordance with the
Company Act, securities
trading law, related laws
and regulations.
Independent directors and
non-independent directors
should be elected together
to determine their
designation. The total shares
of nominal stocks held by

either directors or

supervisors entails a
nomination system. The
nomination, notice and
other matters relating to the
candidates for directors and
supervisors shall be in
accordance with the
Company Act, securities
trading law, related laws
and regulations.
Independent directors and
non-independent directors
should be elected together
to determine their
designation. The total shares
of nominal stocks held by

either directors or

<
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Clause After Amendment Before Amendment Explanation
supervisors shall not be less | supervisors shall not be less
than the specified than the specified
percentage regulated by the | percentage regulated by the
relevant competent relevant competent
authority. authority.
The Company’s earnings In order to link up with the
distribution or loss Internationality and
off-setting proposal may be increase the
proposed at the close of flexibility of corporate
each half a year. governance, in
Where the Company has a accordance with
profit at the end of each the provisions of
half a year, the Company Article 228-1, Article 240,
shall estimate and reserve Paragraph 5 and Article 241
the taxes to be paid, offset of the Company Law, the
losses according to Board of Directors is
regulation, estimate authorized to make a
employees and directors’ resolution every half a year
compensation, and allocate to distribute earnings in
10% as legal reserve, unless cash, as well as capital

Article | accumulated legal reserve reserves or legal reserves in

30 has reached the total cash.

paid-in capital. Then, set

aside or reverse a special

reserve in accordance with

relevant regulations. If a

surplus remains, the

balance combined with

undistributed retained

earnings from preceding

periods shall be distributed

according to the

distribution plan proposed

by the Board of Directors. If

distributing in the form of

cash, it shall be approved

by the Board of Directors. If




Clause

After Amendment

Before Amendment

Explanation

distributing in the form of

new shares to be issue, the

plan shall be submitted to

the shareholders’ meeting

for approval.

The Company shall pay
taxes and cover
accumulated deficits and
then make appropriate
provisions of about 10% for
legal reserve. In the case of
making profit earnings at
the close of business year
after settlement, while the
legal reserve reaches the
paid-in capital of the
Company, it may not make
an provision anymore. The
Company may make
appropriate provision or
reverse to special reserve
for the surplus. In the event
of an undistributed
earnings of current year, it
shall combine with
accumulated undistributed
earnings to apply for
formulating earning
distribution proposal to
Directors.

Board of

Distribution in cash shall be

determined after a

resolution adopted by a

majority vote at a meeting

of the Board of Directors

attended by two-thirds of

the total number of

The Company shall pay
taxes and cover
accumulated deficits and
then make appropriate
provisions of about 10% for
legal reserve. In the case of
making profit earnings at
the close of business year
after settlement, while the
legal reserve reaches the
paid-in capital of the
Company, it may not make
an provision anymore. The
Company may make
appropriate provision or
reverse to special reserve
for the surplus. In the event
of an undistributed
earnings of current year, it
shall combine with
accumulated undistributed
earnings to apply for
formulating earning

distribution proposal to

Board of Directors. and-propese
itin-theshareholders’ .

or disteibuti ¢ dividend
sharehelders:

<
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Clause

After Amendment

Before Amendment

Explanation

directors; and in addition

thereto a report of

such distribution shall be

submitted to the

shareholders’ meeting.

Distribution in _new share

issuance shall be

determined after a

resolution at the

shareholders’ meeting.

The Company, in

accordance with No.241 of

the Articles of

Incorporation, may

authorize the distributable

legal reserve and capital

reserve in whole or in part

to be paid in new stock

issuance _or___in cash

according to the proportion

of the shareholding of

shareholders. Distribution

according to the method

specified in the preceding

paragraph.
The dividend policy of the

Company shall conform to
the current and future
development plans and
consider the investment
environment. Capital
demand and domestic and
international competitive
conditions in addition to
taking into account of
shareholder’s interest. It

shall make an appropriate

The dividend policy of the
Company shall conform to
the current and future
development plans and
consider the investment
environment. Capital
demand and domestic and
international competitive
conditions in addition to
taking into account of
shareholder’s interest. It

shall make an appropriate




Clause

After Amendment

Before Amendment

Explanation

provision but not lower
than 60% of the
undistributed earnings of

distribution period for

distributing dividends to
shareholders. The
Company may not
distribute when the
accumulated undistributed
earnings is lower than
paid-in capital. It may
adopt cash or stock for
distribution of dividends to
shareholders. The cash
dividend is subjected to not
lower than 10% of stock

dividends.

provision but not lower
than 60% of the
undistributed earnings of
eurrentyearfor
distributing dividends to
shareholders. The
Company may not
distribute when the
accumulated undistributed
earnings is lower than
paid-in capital. It may
adopt cash or stock for
distribution of dividends to
shareholders. The cash
dividend is subjected to not
lower than 10% of stock

dividends.

The Article is stipulated on
March 6, 1971. The 1st

amendment was on July 31,

The Article is stipulated on
March 6, 1971. The 1st

amendment was on July 31,

Add revision date.

Article

1973.... The 44th revision 1973.... The 44th revision was
32

was made on May 27, 2022. | made on May 27, 2022.
The 45th revision was made
on May 30, 2024.

Resolution:

ltem 2 Proposed by the Board of Directors

Item: To amend the Company’s Rules of Procedure for Shareholders’ Meetings.

Description:

(1) The amendments of the Company’s Rules of Procedure for Shareholders’
Meetings were proposed in accordance

Taiwan-Stock-Governance-1120004167 issued by the Taiwan Stock Exchange

Corporation on March 17, 2023.

with Rule

11

<
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(2) Comparison Table on the Amendments to Rules of Procedure for Shareholders

Meetings :

’

Clause

After Amendment

Before Amendment

Explanation

Article 4

Item 1 to 4 (Omitted)

To convene a virtual shareholders
meeting, this Corporation shall
include the follow particulars in
the shareholders meeting notice:
1to 2 (Omitted)

3. To convene a virtual-only
shareholders meeting, appropriate
alternative measures available to
shareholders with difficulties in
attending a virtual shareholders
meeting online shall be specified.

Except in the circumstances set

out in Article 44-9, paragraph 6,

Regulations Governing the

Administration of Shareholder

Services of Public Companies, it

shall at least provide the

shareholders with connection

facilities and necessary assistance,

and specify the period during

which shareholders may apply to

the company and other related

matters requiring attention.

Item 1 to 4 (Omitted)

To convene a virtual shareholders
meeting, this Corporation shall
include the follow particulars in
the shareholders meeting notice:
1 to 2 (Omitted)

3. To convene a virtual-only
shareholders meeting, appropriate
alternative measures available to
shareholders with difficulties in
attending a virtual shareholders

meeting online shall be specified.

For amendment
in compliance
with Rule No.
Taiwan-Stock-G
overnance-1120
004167 issued
by the Taiwan
Stock Exchange
Corporation on

March 17, 2023.

Article
24

When convening a virtual-only
shareholders meeting, this
Corporation shall provide
appropriate alternative measures
available to shareholders with
difficulties in attending a virtual
shareholders meeting online.

Except in the circumstances set

out in Article 44-9, paragraph 6,

Regulations Governing the

Administration of Shareholder

When convening a virtual-only
shareholders meeting, this
Corporation shall provide
appropriate alternative measures
available to shareholders with
difficulties in attending a virtual

shareholders meeting online.

For amendment
in compliance
with Rule No.
Taiwan-Stock-G
overnance-1120
004167 issued
by the Taiwan
Stock Exchange
Corporation on

March 17, 2023,




Clause After Amendment Before Amendment Explanation

Services of Public Companies, it

shall at least provide the

shareholders with connection

facilities and necessary assistance,

and specify the period during

which shareholders may apply to

the company and other related

matters requiring attention.

Resolution:

V. Matters for Election

ltem 1 Proposed by the Board of Directors

Item: To elect the Directors.

Description:

(1) The 20th session of the Company's directors expired on July 14,2024. The
Company intends to conduct a general re-election of directors at the general
shareholders' meeting in 2024.

(2) According to the provisions of Article 20 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, eleven directors (including four independent directors) are proposed
to be elected at the current session, and the candidate nomination system is to
be adopted. The term of office for new directors will be three years, starting
from May 30, 2024 to May 29, 2027.

(3) The list of candidates for directors and independent directors has been
approved by the Board of Directors on February 26, 2024. Please refer to page
59 of this handbook.

Election results:
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VI. Other Matters

ltem 1

Proposed by the Board of Directors

Item: To release from non-competition restrictions on directors

Description:

(1) According to the provisions of Article 209 of the Company Law, a director acting

for himself or another person within the Company's business scope shall explain

the important contents of his acts in the shareholder’s meeting and obtain their

approval.

(2) For the new director and Representative of the Company who invests or

operates other companies with the same or similar business scope and acts as

the company's director or manager, the shareholders' meeting agreed to lift the

restrictions on the new director and Representative non-competition restriction

to meet the needs of the actual business.

(3) The position details of directors (including independent directors) who hold

positions with other companies are as follows:

Current part-time

Job Title Name position in other
companies
Director Tseng, Sheng-Lin Pro-Partner Ltd. Director
(Andrew)
Director Tseng, Mei-Ching Pro-Partner Ltd. Director
(Grace) and General Manager
Director Uni-President 1. Chairman of:

Enterprises Corp.

President Global

Corp. President
Natural Industrial
Corp. Presicarre

Corp. Uni-President
Organics Corp. Uni
President Glass
Industrial Co., Ltd.
Ton Yi Industrial
Corp. TTET Union

Corp. Prince Housing




Job Title

Name

Current part-time
position in other

companies

& Development Corp.
Tung Ho
Development co,,
LTD.  Grand  Bills
Finance Corp.
Tong-Ren Corp.
President Packaging
Corp. President Fair
Development Corp.
Vice Chairman of:
President Kikkoman
Inc. President Nisshin
Corp. President
International
Development Corp.
ScinoPharm Taiwan,
Ltd. President Chain
Store Corp.
Uni-President
Cold-Chain Corp.
Presco Netmarketing
Inc. Uni-President
Dream Parks Corp.
Kai Yu Investment Co.
Kai Nan Investment
Co. Uni-President
Development Corp.
Uni-President Vender
Corp. President
Professional Baseball
Team  Corp. Tait
Marketing &
Distribution Co., Ltd.

15
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Job Title

Name

Current part-time
position in other

companies

Nanlien International
Corp. Tung Lo
Development Co.,
Ltd. Tone Sang
Construction  Corp.
Uni-President
Express Corp.

Vice Chairman of:
President Kikkoman
Inc. President Nisshin
Corp.

Director of:
President Global
Corp. Cayman
President  Holdings
Ltd. President Natural
Industrial Corp.
President Kikkoman
Inc. Presicarre Corp.
Uni-President
Organics Corp.
Uni-President  Glass
Industrial Co., Ltd.
Ton Yi Industrial
Corp. TTET Union
Corp.
Mech-President
Corp. Prince Housing
& Development Corp.
Tung Ho
Development Co.,
Ltd.  Grand  Bills

Finance Corp. Tong




Job Title

Name

Current part-time
position in other

companies

Ren Corp. President
Packaging Corp.
President Fair
Development Corp.
President
International
Development Corp.
ScinoPharm Taiwan,
Ltd. President Tokyo
Corporation
President Chain Store
Corp. Uni-President
Cold-Chain Corp.
President  Transnet
Corp. Presco
Netmarketing Inc.
Uni-President Dream
Parks Corp. Kuang
Chuan Dairy Co., Ltd.
Kuang Chuan Foods
Co,, Ltd.
Uni-President
Development  Corp.
Uni-President Vender
Corp. President
Professional Baseball
Team  Corp. Tait
Marketing &
Distribution Co., Ltd.
Weilih  Food Corp.
Nanlien International
Corp. Tung Lo

Development Co.,

17
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Job Title

Name

Current part-time
position in other

companies

Ltd. Tone Sang
Construction  Corp.
RSI, Retail Support
International  Corp.
President Nisshin
Corp. Uni-President
Express Corp.
Grape King Bio Ltd.
Supervisor of:
Uni-Wonder Corp.
Uni-President  Glass
Industrial Co., Ltd.
Presco Netmarketing
Inc. Uni-President
Dream Parks Corp.
Uni-President Vender
Corp. President
Professional Baseball
Team Corp. Tone
Sang Construction
Corp. Uni-President

Express Corp.

Director

Uni-President
Enterprises Corp.
Representative:

Chai, Jia-Fong

President
Pharmaceutical Corp.
General Manager
President
Pharmaceutical
(Hong Kong) Holdings
Limited, Vice
President

President
Pharmaceutical Corp.

Director




Job Title

Name

Current part-time
position in other

companies

President (Shanghai)
Health
Trading Company Ltd.

Product

Director
President Being Corp.

Director

Director

Huang, Yen-Shiang

(James)

CPH BIOTECH CORP.

Chairman

Director

Chang, Jue-lJia
(Barry)

1.

Pro-Partner Ltd.
Director
Kuowang Food Co.,

Ltd. Supervisor

Resolution:

VIl. Extempore motion

VIil. Adjournment

19
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Appendix 1

Grape King Bio Ltd

Audit Committee’s Review Report

The Company’s 2023 Business Report, Parent Company Only and Consolidated
Financial Statements and Earnings Distribution Table, the CPA Ming Yuan Chung and
Yu Feng Huang of Deloitte & Touche were retained to audit Grape King Bio Ltd’s
Financial Statements and have issued an audit report relating to the Financial

Statements.

All the reports have been reviewed and determined to be correct and accurate by
the Audit Committee members of Grape King Bio Ltd. According to relevant
requirements of the Securities and Exchange Act 14-4 and the Company Law 219, we

hereby submit this report.
For review

Sincerely,

Grape King Bio Ltd
2024 Annual Shareholders’ Meetings

Chairman of the Audit Committee: Feng-I Lin

February 26, 2024



Appendix 2

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Grape King Bio Ltd.

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying parent company only financial statements of Grape King Bio
Ltd. (the “Company”), which comprise the parent company only balance sheets as of December 31,
2023 and 2022, and the parent company only statements of comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows for the years ended then ended, and the notes to the parent company only
financial statements, including material accounting policy information (collectively referred to as
the “parent company only financial statements”).

In our opinion, the accompanying parent company only financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and its
financial performance and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with the
Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Financial Statement Audit
and Attestation Engagements of Certified Public Accountants and the Standards on Auditing of the
Republic of China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with The Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified Public
Accountant of the Republic of China, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the parent company only financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the parent company only financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

The key audit matter of the Company’s parent company only financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2023 is described as follows:

Valuation of Inventory

The products of the Group mainly include health foods and beverages. Such products have shelf
lives and are sold in a highly competitive consumer market, resulting in greater exposure to the risk
of loss on inventory due to damage or expiration. The estimation of loss on inventory is based on
market conditions, historical sales experience of similar products, and the net realizable value of
inventory. Refer to Notes 4, 5, and 10 to the parent company only financial statements for the
details on the valuation of inventory. The net carrying amount of inventory as of December 31,
2023 for the Company amounted to NT$577,560 thousand, which was significant to the parent
company only financial statements, and the criteria to determine loss on inventory vary according
to different categories of inventories which require material accounting estimates. Consequently,
the valuation of inventory was identified as a key audit matter.

21
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Our key audit procedures performed with respect to the above area included the following:

1. We understood and tested the design and tested the operating effectiveness of the key controls
over the valuation of inventory;

2. We understood and assessed the reasonableness of the inventory valuation policy and estimates
used by the management;

3. We performed an observation on the Company’s annual physical count of inventory to assess
for any indications of damaged or expired inventories not listed in the allowance for inventory
loss;

4. We sampled and recalculated the accuracy of the net realizable value of inventory as well as
performed calculations of the validity period from the year-end subsidiary ledgers and aging
report of inventories, to verify that the allowance for inventory loss was appropriately
recognized based on the about policy.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Parent
Company Only Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the parent company only
financial statements in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial
Reports by Securities Issuers, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of parent company only financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the parent company only financial statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance, including the audit committee, are responsible for overseeing the
Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Parent Company Only Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the parent company only financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing of the Republic of China will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these parent company only financial statements.



As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the parent company only financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the parent company only financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the parent company only financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the parent company only financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Company to express an opinion on the parent company only
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
Company audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the parent company only financial statements for the
year ended December 31, 2023 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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The engagement partners on the audits resulting in this independent auditors’ report are Ming Yuan
Chung and Yu Feng Huang.

Deloitte & Touche
Taipei, Taiwan
Republic of China

February 26, 2024

Notice to Readers

The accompanying financial statements are intended only to present the financial position,
financial performance and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles and practices
generally accepted in the Republic of China and not those of any other jurisdictions. The standards,
procedures and practices to audit such financial statements are those generally applied in the
Republic of China.

For the convenience of readers, the independent auditors’ report and the accompanying financial
statements have been translated into English from the original Chinese version prepared and used
in the Republic of China. If there is any conflict between the English version and the original
Chinese version or any difference in the interpretation of the two versions, the Chinese-language
independent auditors’ report and financial statements shall prevail.
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GRAPE KING BIO LTD.

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earnings Per Share)

NET REVENUE (Notes 20 and 28)
COST OF GOODS SOLD (Notes 10 and 21)
GROSS PROFIT

REALIZED (UNREALIZED) GAIN ON TRANSACTIONS
WITH SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

ADJUSTED GROSS PROFIT

OPERATING EXPENSES (Notes 18, 21 and 28)
Selling and marketing
General and administrative
Research and development

Total operating expenses
INCOME FROM OPERATIONS

NON-OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENSES (Notes 11,
21 and 28)
Interest income
Other income
Other gains and losses
Finance costs
Share of profit of subsidiaries and associates

Total non-operating income
PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX
INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Note 22)
NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) (Note 19)
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or

loss:

Remeasurement of defined benefit plans

Unrealized gain (loss) on investments in equity
instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Remeasurement of defined benefit plans for subsidiaries
recognized using the equity method

Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss

2023 2022
Amount % Amount %
$ 2,854,451 100 $ 2,807,503 100
(1.425.577) (50) (1,477.591) (53)
1,428,874 50 1,329,912 47
3,000 - (14.429) -
1.431,874 50 1,315,483 47
(447,129) (16) (406,236) (14)
(406,069) (14) (350,972) (13)
(247,093) (8) (251.269) 9)
(1,100.,291) (38) (1,008.477) (36)
331.583 12 307.006 11
9,554 - 1,591 -
98,260 4 99,028 4
577 - 432 -
(1,404) - (747) -
1,092,884 38 1,124,146 40
1,199,871 42 1.224.450 44
1,531,454 54 1,531,456 55
(78,726) (3) (74.344) (3)
1.452.728 51 1.457,112 52
270 - 1,883 -
(1,848) - 2,954 -
(18) - 725 -
(50) - (522) -
(Continued)



GRAPE KING BIO LTD.

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earnings Per Share)

2023 2022
Amount % Amount %
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss:
Exchange differences on translating the financial
statements of foreign operations $ (20,576) (1) $ 17,352 1
Exchange differences on translating the financial
statements of foreign operations of associate (1.945) - 1.071 -
Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year, net
of income tax (24.167) (1) 23.463 1
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR $ 1.428.561 50 $ 1.480.575 53
EARNINGS PER SHARE (Note 23)
Basic earnings per share $ 9.81 $ 9.84
Diluted earnings per share $ 9.74 $ 9.78
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the parent company only financial statements. (Concluded)
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GRAPE KING BIO LTD.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income before income tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation expenses
Amortization expenses
Expected credit loss recognized (reversed)
Net gain on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Finance costs
Interest income
Share of profit of subsidiaries and associates
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment, net
Loss on disposal of subsidiary

Loss (gain) on inventories on retirement and write-down (reversals)

Impairment loss on investments accounted for using the equity
method
(Realized) unrealized gain on transactions with subsidiaries and
associates
Unrealized gain on foreign currency exchange
Gain on modification of lease agreements
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Notes and accounts receivable, net
Accounts receivable from related parties
Other receivables
Other receivables from related parties
Inventories
Other current assets
Contract liabilities
Notes and accounts payable
Other payables
Other payables to related parties
Other current liabilities
Net defined benefit liabilities
Cash generated from operations
Interest received
Interest paid
Income tax paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

2023 2022
$ 1,531,454 $ 1,531,456
292,377 292,159
15,500 8,490
(3,179) -
(358) (631)
1,404 747
(9,554) (1,591)
(1,092,884) (1,124,146)
3) (15)
- 779
(16,805) 21,273
- 2,538
(3,000) 14,429
(1,559) -
(14) .
5,966 (10,301)
10,797 (76,183)
1,927 (603)
2,192 (7,435)
(30,878) 17,027
(944) 17,988
(546) 6,186
204 46,231
7,343 41,000
(339) (163)
(543) 4,053
(2,430) (2,386)
706,128 780,902
9,554 1,591
(15) (141)
(50,705) (30,140)
664,962 752,212
(Continued)
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GRAPE KING BIO LTD.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from sale of financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive (loss) income

Acquisition of financial assets at amortized cost

Proceeds from sale of financial assets at amortized cost

Proceeds from redemption of financial assets at amortized cost

Acquisition of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Proceeds from sale of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Acquisition of investments accounted for using the equity method

Disposal of subsidiary (net cash of disposal )

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

Increase in refundable deposits

Decrease in refundable deposits

Acquisition of intangible assets

Dividends received

Net cash generated from investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from long-term borrowings
Repayments of long-term borrowings
Proceeds from guarantee deposits received
Refund of guarantee deposits received
Repayment of the principal portion of lease liabilities
Dividends paid to owners of the Company
Other financing activities

Net cash used in financing activities

EFFECTS OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the parent company only financial statements.

2023

$ 12,368
(13,107)

25,399
(300,000)

300,358

(563,959)
3

(991)
2,240

(13,878)
970,149

418,582

100
(100)
163

(21,375)
(1,022,148)

2,114

2022

$ -
(27,173)
8,940
5,000
(800,000)

1,001,010
(8,089)
27,586
(442,272)
15
(1,886)
4,536
(13,698)
879.408

633.377

100
(94,465)

1,554
(3,488)
(18,485)
(903,638)

1,732

(1,041,246) (1,016,690)
2,135 -
44,433 368,899
_900.612 531,713
$ 945,045 $ 900,612
(Concluded)



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Grape King Bio Ltd.

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Grape King Bio Ltd. and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of
December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and
cash flows for the years then ended, and the notes to the consolidated financial statements, including material
accounting policy information (collectively referred to as the “consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Group as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with the Regulations
Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers, and International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS), International Accounting Standards (IAS), IFRIC Interpretations (IFRIC), and SIC
Interpretations (SIC) endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic
of China.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Financial Statement Audit and
Attestation Engagements of Certified Public Accountants and the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of
China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with The Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified Public Accountant of the Republic of China, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,

and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter of the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023 is
stated as follows:

Valuation of Inventory

The products of the Group mainly include health foods and beverages. Such products have shelf lives and are
sold in a highly competitive consumer market, resulting in greater exposure to the risk of loss on inventory due
to damage or expiration. The estimation of loss on inventory is based on market conditions, historical sales
experience of similar products, and the net realizable value of inventory. Refer to Notes 4, 5, and 11 to the
consolidated financial statements for details on the valuation of inventory. The net carrying amount of inventory
as of December 31, 2023 for the Group amounted to NT$688,191 thousand, which was significant to the
consolidated financial statements, and the criteria to determine loss on inventory vary according to different
categories of inventories, which require material accounting estimates. Consequently, the valuation of inventory
was identified as a key audit matter.
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Our key audit procedures performed with respect to the above area included the following:

1. We understood and tested the design and tested the operating effectiveness of the key controls over the
valuation of inventory;

2. We understood and assessed the reasonableness of the inventory valuation policy and estimates used by the
management;

3. We performed an observation on the Group’s annual physical count of inventory to assess for any
indications of damaged or expired inventories not listed in the allowance for inventory loss;

4. We sampled and recalculated the accuracy of the net realizable value of inventory as well as performed
calculations of the validity period from the year-end subsidiary ledgers and aging report of inventories, to
verify that the allowance for inventory loss was appropriately recognized based on the policy.

Other Matter

We have also audited the parent company only financial statements of Grape King Bio Ltd. as of and for the
years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 on which we have issued an unmodified opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers, and IFRS,
IAS, IFRIC, and SIC endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic
of China, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance, including the audit committee, are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.



As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision, and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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The engagement partners on the audits resulting in this independent auditors’ report are Ming Yuan Chung and
Yu Feng Huang.

Deloitte & Touche
Taipei, Taiwan
Republic of China

February 26, 2024

Notice to Readers

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are intended only to present the consolidated financial
position, financial performance and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles and practices
generally accepted in the Republic of China and not those of any other jurisdictions. The standards, procedures
and practices to audit such consolidated financial statements are those generally applied in the Republic of

China.

For the convenience of readers, the independent auditors’ report and the accompanying consolidated financial
statements have been translated into English from the original Chinese version prepared and used in the
Republic of China. If there is any conflict between the English version and the original Chinese version or any
difference in the interpretation of the two versions, the Chinese-language independent auditors’ report and

consolidated financial statements shall prevail.
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GRAPE KING BIO LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earnings Per Share)

NET REVENUE (Notes 23 and 32)
COST OF GOODS SOLD (Notes 11 and 24)
GROSS PROFIT

UNREALIZED GAIN ON TRANSACTIONS WITH
ASSOCIATE

ADJUSTED GROSS PROFIT

OPERATING EXPENSES (Notes 21, 24 and 32)
Selling and marketing
General and administrative
Research and development

Total operating expenses
INCOME FROM OPERATIONS

NON-OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENSES (Notes 13,
24 and 32)
Interest income
Other income
Other gains and losses
Finance costs
Share of profit of associate

Total non-operating income
PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX
INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Note 25)
NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) (Notes 21
and 22)
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss:
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments in equity
instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss

2023 2022
Amount % Amount %
$10,635,464 100 $10,391,231 100
(2,099.450) (20) (1,909,186) (18)
8,536,014 80 8,482,045 82
(2.476) - (1,096) -
8,533,538 80 8,480,949 82
(5,045,611) 47) (4,999,836) (48)
(701,717) (7 (639,492) (6)
(289.545) 3) (289.884) (3)
(6,036,873) (57) (5.929.212) (57)
2,496,665 23 2,551,737 25
47,604 1 19,923 _
99,356 1 95,863 1
(337) - 11,900 -
(2,538) - (2,367) -
19,870 - 10,822 -
163,955 2 136,141 1
2,660,620 25 2,687,878 26
(519.109) (5) (518,191) ®)
2,141,511 20 2,169,687 21
240 - 3,092 -
(1,848) - 2,954 -
(48) - (619) -
(Continued)



GRAPE KING BIO LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earnings Per Share)

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss:
Exchange differences on translating the financial
statements of foreign operations
Exchange differences on translating the financial
statements of foreign operations of associate

Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year, net
of income tax

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

NET PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE
TO:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

EARNINGS PER SHARE (Note 26)
Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

2023 2022
Amount % Amount %
$  (20,898) - $ 17,347 -
(1.946) - 1,071 -
(24,500) - 23,845 -
$ 2,117,011 20 $ 2,193,532 21
$ 1,452,728 14 $ 1,457,112 14
688.783 6 712,575 7
$ 2,141,511 20 $ 2,169,687 21
$ 1,428,561 13 $ 1,480,575 14
688.450 7 712.957 7
$ 2,117,011 20 $ 2,193,532 21
$ 9.81 $ 9.84
$§ 974 $§ 97
(Concluded)
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GRAPE KING BIO LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income before income tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation expenses
Amortization expenses
Expected credit loss recognized (reversed)
Net gain on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Finance costs
Interest income
Share of profit of associate
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment, net
Gain on disposal of investment properties
Loss on disposal of subsidiary

Loss (gain) on inventories on retirement and write-down (reversals)
Impairment loss on investments accounted for using equity method

Unrealized gain on transactions with associate
Unrealized gain on foreign currency exchange
Gain on modification of lease agreements
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Notes and accounts receivable, net
Accounts receivable from related parties
Other receivables
Inventories
Other current assets
Contract liabilities
Notes and accounts payable
Accounts payable to related parties
Other payables
Other payables to related parties
Provisions
Other current liabilities
Net defined benefit liabilities
Cash generated from operations
Interest received
Interest paid
Income tax paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

2023 2022
$ 2,660,620 $ 2,687,878
433,662 435,359
26,101 14,279
(773) -
(420) (631)
2,538 2,367
(47,604) (19,923)
(19,870) (10,822)
1,070 408
- (4,943)
- 779
(16,805) 21,273
- 2,538
2,476 1,096
(1,554) -
(14) (106)
4,938 36,277
(21,431) (5,228)
39 2,294
17,357 9,452
9,401 15,821
(53,975) 44,215
(13,815) 24,879
6,002 -
(26,523) 150,477
(8,424) 25,261
- (779)
(1,004) (31,806)
(2,529) (2,718)
2,949,463 3,397,697
39,820 16,395
(68) (199)
(469.813) (423.456)
2,519,402 2.990.437
(Continued)
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GRAPE KING BIO LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from sale of financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive (loss) income

Acquisition of financial assets at amortized cost

Proceeds from sale of financial assets at amortized cost

Proceeds from redemption of financial assets at amortized cost

Acquisition of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Proceeds from sale of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Acquisition of investments accounted for using the equity method

Acquisition of subsidiary (net of cash acquired)

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

Increase in refundable deposits

Decrease in refundable deposits

Acquisition of intangible assets

Proceeds from disposal of investment properties

(Increase) decrease in other non-current assets

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from short-term borrowings
Repayments of short-term borrowings
Proceeds from long-term borrowings
Repayments of long-term borrowings
Proceeds from guarantee deposits received
Refund of guarantee deposits received
Repayment of the principal portion of lease liabilities
Dividends paid to owners of the Company
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests
Other financing activities

Net cash used in financing activities

EFFECTS OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR

2023 2022
$ 12,368 $ -
(37,779) (77,173)
- 8,940
79,715 5,000
(380,000) (800,000)
300,358 1,001,010
- (8,089)
(29,903) -
(587,179) (486,685)
3 21
(4,499) (6,475)
6,806 6,948
(14,212) (15,784)
- 40,181
(410) 1.797
(654.732) (330.309)
50,000 205,000
(50,000) (205,000)
100 100
(100) (94,465)
7,728 8,122
(5,094) (12,028)
(49,865) (45,597)
(1,022,148) (903,638)
(641,666) (582,777)

2,114

1,732

(1,708.931) (1,628.551)
(9.888) 6,078
145,851 1,037,655
4,672,852 3.635.197
4,818,703 4,672,852
(Concluded)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.



Appendix 3
Grape King Bio Ltd

Earnings Distribution Table

Year 2023

(Unit: NTD $)

ltems

Amount Note

Beginning retained earnings
Add (Minus):
Other Comprehensive Income
(Re-measurements of defined benefit plans,2023)
Other Comprehensive Income
(Investment adjustments for Using Equity Method)
2023 Net Profit after Tax
Subtotal
Add (Minus):
10% Legal Reserve appropriation
Special Reserve appropriation
Distributable net profit
Distributable items:
Cash dividend to shareholders-NTS$6.9 per share

Unappropriated retained earnings

2,717,857,641

216,229

(14,339)

1,452,728,101

4,170,787,632

(145,292,999)
(8,728,941)

4,016,765,692

(1,022,147,874)

2,994,617,818

Note: 1. Earnings distribution was first allocated in the 2023 unallocated earnings.

2. The above dividend is based on the number of common shares issued by

the Company as of February 17, 2024; 148,137,373 shares were the bases

for the calculation.

Chairman: Shenglin Andrew Tseng General Manager: Shenglin Andrew Tseng Chief Accountant: Nick Hung
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Appendix 4

Article 1: The Company is named by GRAPE KING BIO LTD, which is organized in accordance with the

Grape King Bio Ltd.
Articles of Incorporation

Chapter 1 General Principles

regulation of company limited by share in the Company Act.

Article 2: Business items of the Company are shown as follows:

L X N o v A~ W N R

N N N N N N NN R P B B R B B B B p
N oo A WN R O L N OO W N B O

C103050 Canned, Frozen, Dehydrated Food Manufacturing
C106010 Flour Milling

F203010 Retail sale of Food and Grocery

F102170 Wholesale of Food and Grocery

C201010 Prepared Animal Feeds Manufacturing

F202010 Retail sale of Animal Feeds

F102040 Wholesale of Nonalcoholic Beverages

C114010 Food Additives Manufacturing
F121010Wholesale of food additives

. F221010 Retail of food additives

. C109010Seasoning Manufacturing

. F501030 Coffee/Tea Shops and Bars

. C802041Drugs and Medicines Manufacturing
. F108021 Wholesale of Drugs and Medicines

. F208021 Retail Sale of Drugs and Medicines

. F208050 Retail Sale of the Second Type Patent Medicine
. F108031 Wholesale of Drugs, Medical Goods
. F208031 Retail sale of Medical Equipment’s

. C802100 Cosmetics Manufacturing

. F108040 Wholesale of Cosmetics

. F208040 Retail Sale of Cosmetics

. C802090 Cleaning Products Manufacturing

. F207030 Retail Sale of Cleaning Preparations
. F107030 Wholesale of Cleaning Preparation

. C105010 Edible Oil Manufacturing

. C102010 Dairy Products Manufacturing

. F206020 Retail Sale of Articles for Daily Use



28.
29.

30.

31.
32.
33.
34.
35.
36.
37.
38.
39.
40.
41.
42.
43.
44,
45.
46.
47.
48.
49.
50.
51.
52.
53.
54.
55.

F106020 Wholesale of Articles for Daily Use

F104110 Wholesale of Cloths, Clothes, Shoes, Hat, Umbrella and Apparel, Clothing Accessories
and Other Textile Products

F204110 Retail sale of Cloths, Clothes, Shoes, Hat, Umbrella and Apparel, Clothing Accessories
and Other Textile Products

F401010 International Trade

H201010 Investment

H701010 Residence and Buildings Lease Construction and Development

C110010 Beverage Manufacturing

C199990 Other Food Manufacturing Not Elsewhere Classified

F102030 Wholesale of Tobacco Products and Alcoholic Beverages

F203020 Retail Sale of Tobacco and Alcoholic Beverages

1401010 General Advertising Services

JE01010 Rental and Leasing Business

1212010 Manpower Services

A101040 Edible Fungus and Algae

A101030 Special Crops

A101050 Flower Gardening

IG01010 Biotechnology Services

F401171 Alcohol Drink Import

F107080 Wholesale of Environment Medicines

F207080 Retail Sale of Environment Medicine

802080 Pesticides Manufacturing

H703100 Real Estate Rental and Leasing

F601010 Intellectual Property

1101090 Food Consultancy

C201020 Pet food processing

F106060 Wholesale of pet food and appliances

F206050 Retail of pet food and appliances

7799999 All business items that are not prohibited or restricted by law, except those that are

subject to special approval.

Article 3

The Company is situated in Taoyuan City and may set up a subsidiary company at home and abroad

through the resolution of Board of Directors and depends on the demand of business.
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Article 3-1
In the case of investment abroad for the Company, the total investment amount may be over 40% of

paid-in capital, and it shall authorize Board of Directors to handle with investment related affairs.

Article 3-2
The Company shall make endorsement and guarantee externally and the procedure shall be handled

according to the regulation of endorsement and guarantee for the Company.

Article 4: Deleted

Chapter 2 Shares

Article 5
The total capital of the Company is 1.8 billion NTD, divided into 180 million shares with per vale of 10

NTD. It authorizes Board of Directors to issue the share separately if necessary.

Article 5-1

When the Company issues new shares, there shall be reserved for employees, including the
employees of parents or subsidiaries of the Company meeting certain specific requirements. The
treasury shares bought back by the Company under the laws, there shall be transferred to employees,
including the employees of parents or subsidiaries of the Company meeting certain specific
requirements. The Company issues a share subscription warrant to employees, including the
employees of parents or subsidiaries of the Company meeting certain specific requirements. The
Company issues restricted stock for employees, including the employees of parents or subsidiaries of
the Company meeting certain specific requirements. The above specific requirements shall authorize

the Board of Directors to establish.

Article 6
The Company adopts registered stock system and issue shares without printing out of share but it

shall contact and register at the Institute of Chartered Secretaries & Administrators.
Article 7: Deleted
Article 8

The Shareholder shall take his/her seal to make registration to the Company. The Shareholders

exercises every right depends on the seal kept in the Company.



Article 9

Unless otherwise specified in ordinance or regulation of securities, for the Shareholder of the
Company handles Shareholder affairs such as stock transfer, setting the pledge, inheritance, favor,
report the loss of seal, change of seal or change of address, it shall be handled according to “The

Company Act” and “Criteria Governing Handling of Stock Affairs by Public Stock Companies”.

Article 10
In the event of missing or destroying shares, the Company will handle according to “The Company Act”
and “Criteria Governing Handling of Stock Affairs by Public Stock Companies” issued by the

competent authority.

Article 11: Deleted

Article 12

In the case of performing negotiable endorsement of shares, shareholder cannot go against the
change of the shareholders’ list unless recording the name or tile of transferee on the share,
recording the name or tile and address of transferee on the shareholders’ list 60 days prior to
shareholder’s regular meeting/ 30 days prior to provisional shareholder’ meeting or 5 days prior to

base date of determining distribution of stock dividend or other interests.

Article 13: Deleted

Chapter 3 Shareholders’ Meetings

Article 14

Shareholders’ meetings consist of two types, one is regular shareholders’ meetings, the other is
provisional shareholders’ meetings. The regular shareholders’ meetings will be conducted by the
Chairman of the board and may be held within six months after the end of fiscal year every year. The

provisional shareholders’ meetings may be held if necessary.

Article 15

The convening of regular shareholders’ meetings shall be conducted according to the regulations of
the Company Act.

When the Corporation holds a shareholder meeting, it may convene a virtual shareholders meeting or

other methods as announced by the Ministry of Economic Affairs.
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Article 16
Unless other regulations in law, the shareholder of the Company has the voting right, and one stock

for one voting right.

Article 17

On the occasion of being unable to attend shareholders’ meetings, a shareholder can issue a power of
attorney listing range of authorization with his/her signature or seal to delegate a deputy for
attendance. Authority for the regulations of delegating attendance of a shareholder, in addition to
conducting according to the regulations of Article 177, the Company Act, it shall handle according to
“Rules Governing the Use of Proxies for Attendance at Shareholder Meetings of Public Companies”

proclaimed by competent authority.

Article 18

There solutions during the shareholders’ meetings except those stipulated in the Company Act, shall
be decided by the majority of shareholders who represent the total number of issued shares, and
whose voting rights shall prevail. Attendance is less than the previous one and the number of
shareholders representing more than one third of the total number of issued shares is present in
accordance with the provisions of the Company Act. 175. Shareholders of the Company are also
allowed to exercise their voting rights electronically. Shareholders who exercise their voting rights
electronically shall be deemed physically present. All relevant matters are governed by existing laws

and regulations.

Article 19

The resolution events of shareholders’ meetings shall be made as meeting minutes, and then signed
or sealed by the chairperson and dispatched the meeting minutes to each shareholder within 20 days
after the meeting. The dispatch of the previous meeting minutes shall be performed through
announcement to those whom signed the sign-in book for attending shareholders’ meetings. The
power of attorney acting on behalf of other Director’s attendance shall be kept in the Company

according to Article 183, the Company Act.

Chapter 4 Director and Audit Committee

Article 20

The Company shall have between nine (9) to thirteen (13) directors. The number of directors is
authorized by the Board of Directors. The term of office shall be three (3) years. Directors shall be
elected from a list of candidates and appointed by the shareholders during the shareholders’

meetings. Directors may also be re-elected for succeeding terms. The number of independent



directors shall not be less than three, and shall not be less than one fifth of the directors' seats. The
election of directors and supervisors entails a nomination system. The nomination, notice and other
matters relating to the candidates for directors and supervisors shall be in accordance with the
Company Act, securities trading law, related laws and regulations. Independent directors and
non-independent directors should be elected together to determine their designation. The total
shares of nominal stocks held by either directors or supervisors shall not be less than the specified

percentage regulated by the relevant competent authority.

Article 20-1: Deleted

Article 20-2

The Board of Directors of the Company may set up functional committees, the qualifications, exercise
of their power, and related matters for the committee members shall be handled in accordance with
the relevant laws and regulations and set out by the Board of Directors.

Pursuant to Article 14-4 of the Securities and Exchange Act, the Company establishes Audit
Committee. The Audit Committee powers conferred by the Securities and Exchange Act, the Company
Act, any other law, and the procedure of corporation.

The Audit Committee shall be composed of the entire number of independent directors, one of whom

shall be committee convener, and at least one of whom shall have accounting or financial expertise.

Article 21

Upon Directors organize Board of Directors it shall elect one of them within Board of Directors as the
Chairman of the board. The Chairman of the Board holds shareholders’ meetings internally and acts
on behalf of the Company externally. In the event of absence, the Chairman of the board shall

designate a Director to be deputed. Directors may elect one of them in case of no designation hereof.

Article 22

The Directors may issue a power of attorney when unable attend the Directors’ meeting to delegate
other Director for acting on behalf of the Director to attend the meeting. However, the deputy is
subjected to be delegated by one person. When holding video conference, the Director may be

regarded as attending in person for the case that Director attending the video conference.

Article 22-1

Directors’ meeting shall be convened once a quarter with the written purpose to inform every
Director and supervisor seven days prior to the meeting date. In the event of emergency, Directors
may convene at any time. The convening of the previous paragraph may be made at any time by

written mail, facsimile, and E-mail etc.
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Article 23

Unless other regulations in the Company Act or Article of Association, it shall be made a resolution by
Directors’ meeting for all its business policies and important events, on occasion of resolution, it shall
be made by over a half of the Directors’ attendances and over a half of the agreement of attending

Directors.

Article 24
The proceedings of Directors’ meeting shall be made as meeting minutes and then issued to every

Director within 20 days after the meeting.

Article 25: Deleted

Article 25-1
Board of Directors is authorized to determine the transportation allowance and remuneration based
on reference of the industrial compensation level but not over the standard of highest level salary

according to Guideline for Remuneration Criteria.

Article25-2: Deleted

Article 25-3
The Company shall purchase liability insurance for Directors to guarantee Directors to take potential

legal responsibility occurring from the implementation of duties thereof.

Chapter 5 Manager

Article 26
The Company shall set up managers, and the appointment, discharge and remuneration shall be

handled in accordance with the regulations of Article 29, the Company Act.

Chapter 6 Accounting

Article 27

The fiscal year of the Company begins on January 1 and ends on December 31 every year.

Article 28
Board of Directors shall prepare the following financial reports according to the regulations of the
Company Act at the end of fiscal year of the Company and propose in shareholders” meetings for

admission.



1. Annual Business Report
2. Financial Report

3. Proposal for Appointment of Profit or Loss

xipuaddy ‘ .

Article 29

The Company shall make appropriate provisions for Employee bonus and remuneration to Director

according to the proportion as below on the occasion of a profit making year.

However, it shall preserve amount to cover the deficit and then make appropriate provisions to

employee bonuses and remunerations to Directors by following proportion in case that there is

accumulated deficits in the Company.

(1) Employee Bonus:
The Company shall make appropriate provisions based on Income Before Tax (Employee Bonus
and Remuneration to Director excluded) for 6-8% as employee bonus and distribute and issue
stock or cash depends on the resolution of Board of Directors. The distributed targets include
the employees of parents or subsidiary of the Company meeting certain specific requirements
and specific requirements shall authorize the Board of Directors to establish.

(2) Remuneration to Director:
The Company shall make appropriate provisions but not more than 2% based on Income before
Tax (Employee Bonus and Remuneration to Director excluded) for Remuneration to Director).
The distribution proposal of employee bonus and remuneration to Director shall be proposed in

Directors’ meeting.

Article 30

The Company shall pay taxes and cover accumulated deficits and then make appropriate provisions of
about 10% for legal reserve. In the case of making profit earnings at the close of business year after
settlement, while the legal reserve reaches the paid-in capital of the Company, it may not make an
provision anymore. The Company may make appropriate provision or reverse to special reserve for
the surplus. In the event of an undistributed earnings of current year, it shall combine with
accumulated undistributed earnings to apply for formulating earning distribution proposal to Board of
Directors and propose it in the shareholders’ meetings for distribution of dividends to shareholders.
The dividend policy of the Company shall conform to the current and future development plans and
consider the investment environment. Capital demand and domestic and international competitive
conditions in addition to taking into account of shareholder’s interest. It shall make an appropriate
provision but not lower than 60% of the undistributed earnings of current year for distributing
dividends to shareholders. The Company may not distribute when the accumulated undistributed
earnings is lower than paid-in capital. It may adopt cash or stock for distribution of dividends to

shareholders. The cash dividend is subjected to not lower than 10% of stock dividends.
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Chapter 7 Supplementary Articles

Article 31

For the events not stipulated in the Article, it comply with the regulations of the Company Act.

Article 32

The Article is established on March 6, 1971. The 1st amendment was on July 31, 1973. The 2nd
amendment was on January 20, 1774. The 3rd amendment was on April 11, 1977. The 4th
amendment was on February 5, 1979. The 5th amendment was on May 6, 1979. The 6th amendment
was on March 29, 1980. The 7th amendment was on March 29, 1981. The 8th amendment was on
February 21, 1982. The 9th amendment was on May 3, 1985. The 10th amendment was on June 17,
1986. The 11th amendment was on November 20, 1986. The twelve amendment was on May 23,
1987. The 13th amendment was May 25, 1988. The 14th amendment was on May 24, 1989. The 15th
amendment was on November 3, 1989. The 16th amendment was on April 19, 1990. The 17th
amendment was on September 9, 1991. The 18th amendment was on May 25, 1992. The 19th
amendment was on April 23, 1993. The 20th amendment was on May 30, 1994. The 21st amendment
was on May 31, 1995. The 22nd amendment was on May 29, 1996. The 23rd amendment was on June
16, 1997. The 24th amendment was on June 26, 1998. The 25th amendment was on June 26, 1998.
The 26th amendment was on June 25, 1999. The 27th amendment was on June 12, 2000. The 28th
amendment was on June 14, 2001. The 29th amendment was on June 12, 2002. The 30th amendment
was on June 18, 2003. The 31st amendment was on June 21, 2004. The 32nd amendment was on June
17, 2005. The 33rd amendment was on June 14, 2006. The 34th amendment was on June 18, 2008.
The 35th amendment was on June 19, 2009. The 36th amendment was June 13, 2012. The 37th
amendment was on June 23 2014. The 38th amendment was on June 26, 2015. The 39th amendment
was on June 16, 2016. The 40th amendment was on June 13, 2017. The 41th revision was made on
May 29, 2019. The 42th revision was made on May 28, 2020. The 43th revision was made on July 15,
2021. The 44th revision was made on May 27, 2022.



Appendix 5

Grape King Bio Ltd.
Rules of Procedure for Shareholders’ Meetings

Approved by the Shareholders’ Meeting held on May 21, 2023
Article 1
The rules of procedures for the Company's shareholders’ meetings, except as otherwise provided by

law, shall be as provided in these Rules.

Article 2

This Corporation shall furnish the attending shareholders with an attendance book to sign, or
attending shareholders may hand in a sign-in card in lieu of signing in.

The number of shares in attendance shall be calculated according to the shares indicated by the
attendance book and sign-in cards handed in, and the shares checked in on the virtual meeting
platform, plus the number of shares whose voting rights are exercised by correspondence or

electronically.

Article 3

A shareholder except as otherwise provided by law, shall be entitled to one vote for each share held.

Article 4

The venue for a shareholders meeting shall be the premises of this Corporation, or a place easily
accessible to shareholders and suitable for a shareholders meeting. The meeting may begin no earlier
than 9 a.m. and no later than 3 p.m. Full consideration shall be given to the opinions of the
independent directors with respect to the place and time of the meeting.

The restrictions on the place of the meeting shall not apply when this Corporation convenes a
virtual-only shareholders meeting.

In the event of a virtual shareholders meeting, shareholders wishing to attend the meeting online
shall register with this Corporation two days before the meeting date.

In the event of a virtual shareholders meeting, this Corporation shall upload the meeting agenda book,
annual report and other meeting materials to the virtual meeting platform at least 30 minutes before
the meeting starts, and keep this information disclosed until the end of the meeting.

To convene a virtual shareholders meeting, this Corporation shall include the follow particulars in the
shareholders meeting notice:

1. How shareholders attend the virtual meeting and exercise their rights.
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2. Actions to be taken if the virtual meeting platform or participation in the virtual meeting is
obstructed due to natural disasters, accidents or other force majeure events, at least covering the
following particulars:

A. To what time the meeting is postponed or from what time the meeting will resume if the above
obstruction continues and cannot be removed, and the date to which the meeting is postponed or on
which the meeting will resume.

B. Shareholders not having registered to attend the affected virtual shareholders meeting shall not
attend the postponed or resumed session.

C. In case of a hybrid shareholders meeting, when the virtual meeting cannot be continued, if the
total number of shares represented at the meeting, after deducting those represented by
shareholders attending the virtual shareholders meeting online, meets the minimum legal
requirement for a shareholder meeting, then the shareholders meeting shall continue. The shares
represented by shareholders attending the virtual meeting online shall be counted towards the total
number of shares represented by shareholders present at the meeting, and the shareholders
attending the virtual meeting online shall be deemed abstaining from voting on all proposals on
meeting agenda of that shareholders meeting.

D. Actions to be taken if the outcome of all proposals have been announced and extraordinary motion
has not been carried out.

3. To convene a virtual-only shareholders meeting, appropriate alternative measures available to

shareholders with difficulties in attending a virtual shareholders meeting online shall be specified.

Article 5

If shareholders’” meetings are convened by the Board of Directors, the meeting shall be chaired by the
chairperson of the board. When the chairperson of the board is on leave or for any reason unable to
exercise the powers of the chairperson, the vice chairperson shall act in place of the chairperson; if
there is no vice chairperson or the vice chairperson also is on leave or for any reason unable to
exercise the powers of the vice chairperson, the chairperson shall appoint one of the Managing
Directors to act as chair, or, if there are no Managing Directors, one of the Directors shall be
appointed to act as chair. Where the Chairperson does not make such a designation, the Managing
Directors or the directors shall select from among themselves one person to serve as chair.

If shareholders’ meetings are convened by a party with power to convene but other than the Board of

Directors the convening party shall Chair the meeting.

Article 6

This Corporation may appoint its attorneys, certified public accountants, or related persons retained
by it to attend shareholders’ meetings in a non-voting capacity.

Staff handling administrative affairs of shareholders’ meetings shall wear identification cards or arm

bands.



Article 7

This Corporation shall make an audio and video recording of the shareholders meeting, and the
preceding paragraph shall be retained for at least one year.

Where a shareholders meeting is held online, this Corporation shall keep records of shareholder
registration, sign-in, check-in, questions raised, votes cast and results of votes counted by this
Corporation, and continuously audio and video record, without interruption, the proceedings of the
virtual meeting from beginning to end.

The information and audio and video recording in the preceding paragraph shall be properly kept by
this Corporation during the entirety of its existence, and copies of the audio and video recording shall
be provided to and kept by the party appointed to handle matters of the virtual meeting.

In case of a virtual shareholders meeting, this Corporation is advised to audio and video record the

back-end operation interface of the virtual meeting platform.

Article 8

The chair shall call the meeting to order at the appointed meeting time, however, when the attending
shareholders do not represent a majority of the total number of issued shares, the chair may
announce a postponement, provided that no more than two such postponements, for a combined
total of no more than one hour, may be made. If the quorum is not met after two postponements and
the attending shareholders still represent less than one third of the total number of issued shares, the
chair shall declare the meeting adjourned. In the event of a virtual shareholders meeting, this
Corporation shall also declare the meeting adjourned at the virtual meeting platform.

If the quorum is not met after two postponements as referred to in the preceding paragraph, but the
attending shareholders represent one third or more of the total number of issued shares, a tentative
resolution may be adopted pursuant to Article 175, paragraph 1 of the Company Act; all shareholders
shall be notified of the tentative resolution and another shareholders meeting shall be convened
within one month. In the event of a virtual shareholders meeting, shareholders intending to attend
the meeting online shall re-register to this Corporation in accordance with Article 4.

When, prior to conclusion of the meeting, the attending shareholders represent a majority of the
total number of issued shares, the chair may resubmit the tentative resolution for a vote by the

shareholders meeting pursuant to Article 174 of the Company Act.

Article 9

If shareholders’ meetings are convened by the Board of Directors, the meeting agenda shall be set by
the Board of Directors, and related proposal (including extempore motions and revised proposal) shall
be followed by a poll for each proposal. The meeting shall proceed in the order set by the agenda,
which may not be changed without a resolution of the shareholders’ meetings.

The provisions of the preceding paragraph apply mutatis mutandis to shareholders’ meetings

convened by a party with the power to convene that is not the Board of Directors.
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The Chair may not declare the meeting adjourned prior to completion of deliberation on the meeting
agenda of the preceding two paragraphs (including extempore motions), except by a resolution of the
shareholders’ meetings.

If the Chair declares the meeting adjourned in violation of the rules of procedure, by agreement of a
majority of the votes represented by the attending shareholders, and then continue the meeting.
After the meeting is adjourned, shareholders may not separately elect a Chair and resume the

meeting at the original or another venue.

Article 10

Before speaking, an attending shareholder must specify on a speaker's slip the subject of the speech,
his/her shareholder account number (or attendance card number), and account name. The order in
which shareholders speak will be set by the chair.

A shareholder in attendance who has submitted a speaker's slip but does not actually speak shall be
deemed to have not spoken. When the content of the speech does not correspond to the subject
given on the speaker's slip, the spoken content shall prevail.

When an attending shareholder is speaking, other shareholders may not speak or interrupt unless
they have sought and obtained the consent of the chair and the shareholder that has the floor; the
chair shall stop any violation.

Where a virtual shareholders meeting is convened, shareholders attending the virtual meeting online
may raise questions in writing at the virtual meeting platform from the chair declaring the meeting
open until the chair declaring the meeting adjourned. No more than two questions for the same
proposal may be raised. Each question shall contain no more than 200 words. The regulations in
paragraphs 1 to 3, Article 11 and Article 12, paragraph 2 do not apply.

As long as questions so raised in accordance with the preceding paragraph are not in violation of the
regulations or beyond the scope of a proposal, it is advisable the questions be disclosed to the public

at the virtual meeting platform.

Article 11
Except with the consent of the chair, a shareholder may not speak more than twice on the same
proposal, and a single speech may not exceed 5 minutes. If the shareholder's speech violates the rules

or exceeds the scope of the agenda item, the Chair may terminate the speech.

Article 12

When a juristic person is appointed to attend as proxy, it may designate only one person to represent
it in the meeting.

When a juristic person shareholder appoints two or more representatives to attend shareholders’

meetings, only one of the representatives so appointed may speak on the same proposal.



Article 13
After an attending shareholder has spoken, the Chair may respond in person or direct relevant

personnel to respond.
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Article 14
When the Chair is of the opinion that a proposal has been discussed sufficiently to put it to a vote, the

Chair may announce the discussion closed and call for a vote and properly arrange the vote time.

Article 15

Vote monitoring and counting personnel for the voting on a proposal shall be appointed by the chair,
provided that all monitoring personnel shall be shareholders of the Company. Vote counting for
proposals or elections shall be conducted in public at the place of the shareholders’ meetings.
Immediately after vote counting has been completed, the results of the voting, including the
statistical tallies of the numbers of votes, shall be announced on-site at the meeting, and a record

made of the vote.

Article 16

When a meeting is in progress, the Chair may announce a break based on time considerations.

Article 17

Except as otherwise provided in the Company Act and in this Corporation's articles of incorporation,
the passage of a proposal shall require an affirmative vote of a majority of the voting rights
represented by the attending shareholders. At the time of a vote, for each proposal, the chair or a
person designated by the chair shall first announce the total number of voting rights represented by
the attending shareholders, followed by a poll of the shareholders.

When this Corporation convenes a virtual shareholders meeting, after the chair declares the meeting
open, shareholders attending the meeting online shall cast votes on proposals and elections on the
virtual meeting platform before the chair announces the voting session ends or will be deemed
abstained from voting.

In the event of a virtual shareholders meeting, votes shall be counted at once after the chair
announces the voting session ends, and results of votes and elections shall be announced
immediately.

When this Corporation convenes a hybrid shareholders meeting, if shareholders who have registered
to attend the meeting online in accordance with Article 4 decide to attend the physical shareholders
meeting in person, they shall revoke their registration two days before the shareholders meeting in
the same manner as they registered. If their registration is not revoked within the time limit, they may

only attend the shareholders meeting online.
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When shareholders exercise voting rights by correspondence or electronic means, unless they have
withdrawn the declaration of intent and attended the shareholders meeting online, except for
extraordinary motions, they will not exercise voting rights on the original proposals or make any
amendments to the original proposals or exercise voting rights on amendments to the original

proposal.

Article 18

When there is an amendment or an alternative to a proposal, the Chair shall present the amended or
alternative proposal together with the original proposal and decide the order in which they will be put
to a vote. When any one among them is passed, the other proposals will then be deemed rejected,

and no further voting shall be required.

Article 19
The Chair may direct the proctors or security personnel to help maintain order at the meeting place.
When proctors or security personnel help maintain order at the meeting place, they shall wear an

identification card or armband bearing the word "Proctor."

Article 20

On the day of a shareholders meeting, this Corporation shall compile in the prescribed format a
statistical statement of the number of shares obtained by solicitors through solicitation, the number
of shares represented by proxies and the number of shares represented by shareholders attending
the meeting by correspondence or electronic means, and shall make an express disclosure of the
same at the place of the shareholders meeting. In the event a virtual shareholders meeting, this
Corporation shall upload the above meeting materials to the virtual meeting platform at least 30
minutes before the meeting starts, and keep this information disclosed until the end of the meeting.
During this Corporation's virtual shareholders meeting, when the meeting is called to order, the total
number of shares represented at the meeting shall be disclosed on the virtual meeting platform. The
same shall apply whenever the total number of shares represented at the meeting and a new tally of

votes is released during the meeting.

Article 21

In the event of a virtual shareholders meeting, this Corporation shall disclose real-time results of
votes and election immediately after the end of the voting session on the virtual meeting platform
according to the regulations, and this disclosure shall continue at least 15 minutes after the chair has

announced the meeting adjourned.



Article 22
When this Corporation convenes a virtual-only shareholders meeting, both the chair and secretary
shall be in the same location, and the chair shall declare the address of their location when the

meeting is called to order.

Article 23

In the event of a virtual shareholders meeting, this Corporation may offer a simple connection test to
shareholders prior to the meeting, and provide relevant real-time services before and during the
meeting to help resolve communication technical issues.

In the event of a virtual shareholders meeting, when declaring the meeting open, the chair shall also
declare, unless under a circumstance where a meeting is not required to be postponed to or resumed
at another time under Article 44-20, paragraph 4 of the Regulations Governing the Administration of
Shareholder Services of Public Companies, if the virtual meeting platform or participation in the
virtual meeting is obstructed due to natural disasters, accidents or other force majeure events before
the chair has announced the meeting adjourned, and the obstruction continues for more than 30
minutes, the meeting shall be postponed to or resumed on another date within five days, in which
case Article 182 of the Company Act shall not apply.

For a meeting to be postponed or resumed as described in the preceding paragraph, shareholders
who have not registered to participate in the affected shareholders meeting online shall not attend
the postponed or resumed session.

For a meeting to be postponed or resumed under the second paragraph, the number of shares
represented by, and voting rights and election rights exercised by the shareholders who have
registered to participate in the affected shareholders meeting and have successfully signed in the
meeting, but do not attend the postpone or resumed session, at the affected shareholders meeting,
shall be counted towards the total number of shares, number of voting rights and number of election
rights represented at the postponed or resumed session.

During a postponed or resumed session of a shareholders meeting held under the second paragraph,
no further discussion or resolution is required for proposals for which votes have been cast and
counted and results have been announced, or list of elected directors and supervisors.

When this Corporation convenes a hybrid shareholders meeting, and the virtual meeting cannot
continue as described in second paragraph, if the total number of shares represented at the meeting,
after deducting those represented by shareholders attending the virtual shareholders meeting online,
still meets the minimum legal requirement for a shareholder meeting, then the shareholders meeting
shall continue, and not postponement or resumption thereof under the second paragraph is required.
Under the circumstances where a meeting should continue as in the preceding paragraph, the shares
represented by shareholders attending the virtual meeting online shall be counted towards the total

number of shares represented by shareholders present at the meeting, provided these shareholders

57

xipuaddy ‘ .



xipuaddy ‘ >

58

shall be deemed abstaining from voting on all proposals on meeting agenda of that shareholders
meeting.

When postponing or resuming a meeting according to the second paragraph, this Corporation shall
handle the preparatory work based on the date of the original shareholders meeting in accordance
with the requirements listed under Article 44-20, paragraph 7 of the Regulations Governing the
Administration of Shareholder Services of Public Companies.

For dates or period set forth under Article 12, second half, and Article 13, paragraph 3 of Regulations
Governing the Use of Proxies for Attendance at Shareholder Meetings of Public Companies, and
Article 44-5, paragraph 2, Article 44-15, and Article 44-17, paragraph 1 of the Regulations Governing
the Administration of Shareholder Services of Public Companies, this Corporations hall handle the
matter based on the date of the shareholders meeting that is postponed or resumed under the

second paragraph.

Article 24
When convening a virtual-only shareholders meeting, this Corporation shall provide appropriate

alternative measures available to shareholders with difficulties in attending a virtual shareholders

meeting online.

Article 25
These Rules shall take effect after having been submitted to and approved by a shareholders meeting.

Subsequent amendments thereto shall be effected in the same manner.



x

— | Appendix
Jo30341Q
uo3eJ0dio) JUBWIISIAU| UIX A “L
uewuieyd P11 dUIYSIAIY "9 | NN “PITIuswWaindold
J032241Q P37 0D 3siudiaiug BWIX0.d JaSeuen
8ury adesg jey3ueys g SunayJe|p Joluas g
uewJieyy INI N “pa1 0D swaisAs
ININLSIANI TYNOILYNYILNI Jaandwo) dnouday|3
ONDI 3dVED ING ¥ 19)4e|\ ueadoun3
JojoauIQg 'py] Jouned-oid € - J93eue|\ SunaddelN ‘T
IJ8uoyz ui "p17 olg 3ury N “Ppa1 0D swaisAs SleiN
adeuo ayy jo Jo8euep youeug ‘g J9indwo) dnouday|3 (maupuy)
Ja8euep |eJauan pue 19)Je|A ueadouny apAjpyiens ur-8uays
[N Y1189 uewuJiey) ‘p1joig Suly adesn T -J010241Q SundylelN T J0 Aususniun ‘ayd ‘Buas) Joaulg
2Jow
JO SWJ} dAIINIISUO0D
934Y3 40} panIaS
ApeauJje s1030241p
juapuadapul
Jo uoseas ayl | 8uipjo-yaJteys uonisod uaLIn) 2oualIadx] uoneanpy awenN uonisod

$40323.1Q Juapuadapu) pue s1032341q 40} S3EpIpUE) JO ISI

9 Xipuaddy

59



41012al1Q

‘P37 JUBWISAAU| UIYSUNA  °9

Josiniadng

"pY7 duIysIaAIY leySueys g

10102110 "PY] QUIYSIOALY

10192410 DN
ININLSIANI TYNOILYNYILNI

‘P17 0D Jaulried-oid

1U9pISaId MIA T

ONII 3dV¥D INE '€ 3504 SuluIO| 9jewa4
J38eue|p |eJdul3D 9Juapuadapul Ayisianiun (90e4D)
pue Jo12a41q "pP1] JouMed-0id T J011p3 |[eanljod uosyoer maJpuy Sulyd-1vIN
I'N LTT'VS6°C Jo102u41Q "py101g Suly adess ‘T | —Jopesjwesl Aindagq T ‘@3483Q s, 4915BIN ‘ON3SL 10310911
aJow
40O SWJ3] 9AIlNJIasSU0d
934Y3 40} paAJas
Apeauje s1030341p
1uspuadapul
jJouoseasayl | 3Buipjo-yaJseys uonisod uaiin) ouaIadXx] uolyeanp3 aweN uollsod

x

Appendix

60



x

— | Appendix
‘p11 Auedwo) Suipeuy
10NpoJd YieaH Anisianiun
(leySueys) 1uspisaid  °§ uenyd Suin
J0123410 ‘udisaq [erJawwo)
'p11 Auedwo) Buipeu) pue uoilesisiuiwpy
J012341q "dJo) 8uiag Juapisald 10npoJd YieaH ssauisng Jo Jojayoeg '€
J030341Q (1ey8ueys) wuapisaid v | uSiedweyd-eueqin
‘P11 Auedwo) Suiped] 19npoud juapIsaJd A sioul||| Jo Alsianlun
yyjeaH (1ey3ueys) wuapisalid "duo) |eannasewueyd ‘uonesisiuiwpy
J012341q "dJ0o) uapisald ‘€ ssauisng
[ed13nddeWIBYd JUBPISId Ja8eue\ [eJauaD Ul 92U3IDS JO JDISBIN T STEI
1uapIsaJd DA "du0) |eannnasewueyd udiedwey)-euequn 3uo4-eir ‘leyd
‘paywi] s8uipjoH (8uoy SuoH) apIsald ‘7 | Sioul||| 4o Ausiaaiun :9A1lRIUDSAIdRY
[ed13NddBWIEBYd JUdPISId J0122410 “uawdojanaq "d40D
Ja8euely [esauan "dio) ‘dJo) |eaianadewJeyd 92JN0S3Y UBWNH Ul S3SIYdYILNT
[IN 000°TS8‘1IT |[ed1anadewleyd 1uapisald uapisald T | uoneanpjjoJaiselN T | LINIAISTHL-INN J0102410
2Jo0w
JO SWJ) AAIINIISUOD
934Y3 4O} PaAIIS
Apeauje s1030341p
1uspuadapul
Jjouoseasayl | Suipjo-yaseys uonisod uauIn) 9oualiadx] uoneanpy awe uonisod

61



uoljowoud sajes *dio)
9J01S Uley) uapIsald
Jadeuelp

10npoud ‘4a3eue|p
[uuey) ‘40323.1q
Aindaq ‘40309410
ssauisng "aLl1 NVYMIVL
NOSNHOTI '8 NOSNHOf

10123410
*dio) 3uiag Juapisald
juapIsald

JIA "pa1iwn

s3uip|oH (3uoy

8uoH) [eaninasewueyd
juapIsald

Ja3eueln |eJauan

aJow
JO SWJ3) dAIINIISUO0D
934y} 404 POAIDS
Apeauje s1030341p
1uapuadapul

Jo uoseal ay|

8uip|o-yaseys

uonisod jua.in)

ouaIadXx]

uoneonp3

awepN

uonisod

x

Appendix

62



x

— | Appendix
uewuieyd P
"aL71 02 ONIAVYL NVIONAT 9 | 0D yoaloig oeiqsulyd
Ja8eue [eJaUBD pue 1032341q uewdieyy €
‘P11 0D |euasnpul enydulr  °g PN
uewuieyd “0) |elasnpu| enyduir
‘P17 0D JuawisaAu| oeiqdulyy 'y uewdiey) Aindaq
uewJieyd ‘10103410 9A1INIAXT T
"P11 0D yosy0ig oeiq3uly)y ‘g SN SleiN
Josiaiadng "py7 0D astidisiul “au| 9ouednsu| (sawer)
8uny adesp rey8ueys ¢ 9}I7 9qo|osued] 'S'N ‘UOSIPBIAI-UISUOISIAN Sueiys-uaa
I'N 000°€0¢ 1030241Q "py1 01g Suly adess T Joypny T jo Ayisianiun “v'g ‘ONVNH J0132417
Jladeuen
2Jo0w
JO SWJ) AAIINIISUOD
934Y3 4O} PaAIIS
Apeauje s1030341p
1uspuadapul
Jjouoseasayl | Suipjo-yaseys uonisod uauIn) 9oualiadx] uoneanpy awe uonisod

63



I'N

98€'8€S'T

PN
“0) poo4 3uemony| ‘Josiniadns 9
uemie] Slg ‘JUB}NSUO) JOIUAS °G
40133JIQ "PYT SUIYSIDAY 'Y
10193413 "INI
INIFNLSIANI TYNOILYNYILNI
ONDI 3dVED ING "€
J032341Q "pP¥] Jouned-oid ¢

Joyoauiq "py1 oig Buly adesn T

uemiel HSO

Jadeue|\ puesg JoOlUdS g

uemie]

‘SIJIBAON/UOISIA V1D

Jo1oa41q SunayielN  p

uemie] ‘usyaulay

J030341q SunayJelN ‘g

spuejsayiaN
9y} ul suaenbpeay
‘usyaulaH

Jageue|p Sunayleln

jeuoljeudaiu] ‘¢

uemie] ‘Jayewanepn

Ja8eue |eJuan T

SN
‘AyIsianiun uojduiysepn
934099 ‘Sunaye

u1 9248aQ s J91seN

9leiN
(Aaaeg)

eIf-anf ‘ONVHD

J10123al1Q

aJow
JO SWJ3) dAIINIISUO0D
934y} 404 POAIDS
Apeauje s1030341p
1uspuadapul

Jo uoseal ay|

8uip|o-yaseys

uonisod jua.in)

ouaIadXx]

uoneonp3

awepN

uonisod

x

Appendix

64



x

— | Appendix
(uoissas
YieT) Joauia v
ueule]
‘uemie] joueg puel
xog ysodaq Aysaaniun 8uay)
9Jes joawiedag ¢ Suny) [euonen
Sunyoie] ‘uonpeaouu| pue
‘Uemie] jo>ueg pueq 9.injeJtalln uemie]
uoI123]|0D Ul 93483( S,4915eN
ueo1 ‘sanlndag Ausianiun 8uayd
‘P¥] 0D SED WN3|0J419d jojuawpedaq g 8uny) [euonen
BIYD-UIYS Jo Josiaiadng '€ Sunyoiey ‘meq pue 8uinunoddy
UOI1B1D0SSY ‘uonesodio) Jonbiq ul 93483( S,4915eN
saly|igesiq |edaisAyd 3 000BQO] UBMIE] Ansianiun dlewaS
1Ae1y) ‘4o010241Q Sulpuels g uolihquisig 8uay) Sunyd unyd-3uisH
I'N 965'6SS'T Joyaulq 'py1 oig Suny adess ' jojuswypedag T [euoneN ‘vaINg ‘usyd J0133.41d
2Jo0w
JO SWJ) AAIINIISUOD
934Y3 4O} PaAIIS
Apeauje s1030341p
1uspuadapul
Jjouoseasayl | Suipjo-yaseys uonisod uauIn) 9oualiadx] uoneanpy awe uonisod

65



P11
0D AlAizeaID UNA 1YZ

‘dnoJo Jo10N Jloyanqudissqg 'z A3ojouyoda ]
1e10H JO 91e40d10)) XeAjIeD) ‘P11 “0D J0 Ausianiun 1adie)
‘A891e13S Ajipowwio) ‘4a8eue|\ "z | |euoileudalu| 21807V |euonieN ‘udisaqg pue 3N
['N 000°€59 J0312241Q 'p371 01g Sup| adesny T Joudisaqg JeamaAy T uolleAOUU| JO JDISBIA 19M-YIYD “1e 1032341Q
(Awo

IAeiy)) uanieduapury
91eAlId UEN elf
Ja1sewpeay

pue a8Jeyd-uj-uosiad °g
(AuD 1he1yd)
Awapedy uoleanp3

pooyp|iyd Aie3

aJow
JO SWJ3) dAIINIISUO0D
934y} 404 POAIDS
Apeauje s1030341p
1uspuadapul

jouosealayl | Suipjo-yaseys uonisod jua.in) 2oualIadx] uoneanpy aweN uonIsod

X | Appendix

66



x

Appendix

I'N

slanI8ase)

Ajlwe4 Jo uoieIoSSY uemie|

3Y31 Jo |eJauan AJe1audas
1032341Q 1uapuadapuy

"p11 oig Sury adeun

Ul 124N1097 awil-ued
"p371 0D Buiynsuo)
d11gnd N uniys
._mMNcm_\/_ |eJauan
dnoup

Sunnsuo) 09-19r
1UdPISDId IIA

uen\ aA13e|sI3a7
1Ue1SISSY

|euoissaiduo)

Aisianiun
1ya8uay) |euonen

‘A30|01206 jo J31SeN

9jewa
(Auuar)
SuIN 8uir ‘N3HD

1012341

juspuadapu|

‘P11 0D Xewue)
JO1OA 1B10H JO 421U
juswdojanaq pue
yoJeasay |ediuyda]
§31YDd uondes

A391e435 10NpPOId

aJow
JO SWJ3) dAIINIISUO0D
934y} 404 POAIDS
Apeauje s1030341p
1uspuadapul

Jo uoseal ay|

8uip|o-yaseys

uonisod jua.in)

ouaIadXx]

uoneonp3

awepN

uonisod

67



NHLN ‘ J21ua) uoizeonp3

|esauan pue ASojouyda] puy

92UBIIS 404 MET JO 93NMUISU|

asauly) uoiepuno4
,SsJaWnsuo) ay3 Jo
Jaquiaw 91lWWo) '€

uenj

Ayissaniun

12die] |[euonep ‘meq

ul 92489Q S, 491SeIN '€

Aysianlun uemie]

‘10559)04d 1uUelSISSY uUnlpy  °7 aAlle[sia 4anoday g |euoinen ‘meq ETEN
1adie] asauiyd uen, aAne|si3a Ul 93J89Q S,J91SBIN T (sawer)
uoll1epuUNoO4 ,SIBWNSUO) ‘91340 Aejusweljied Ausianiun Suay) 3uny)-8ued 10123.41Q
I'N 0 941 JO Jaquiaw s=jwwio) T ‘Jopaliid T | 3uny)|euonen ‘ayd T ‘NIHD | 3uspuadapul
uonepuno4 Ayajes
PI'YD uenyd 3uir
jueynsuo) ‘9
Avisianiun uisH yYiys
wsiuiwaS
Ul J24n3097 dwil-Hed S
Avisianun uayd yiys
SunayJe uolyse4
aJow
JO SWJ9) AIINIBSUOD
93.Y1 J0} panIas
Apeauje s1030341p
1uapuadapul
Jo uoseal ayl | Suipjo-yaJteys uolisod jualin)y 2oualadx] uolneanp3 awepN uolsod

Appendix

68



= Appendix

69

pue ASojouyda)

puy 22U312S JO4 MeT

JO 91n13su| “Jossajold
juelsissy punfpy g

diysumo |

8uaynpn jo sioAew

diysumoi 3unoy

‘931IWWO) sireyy

|e8a7 o uossadiieyd

‘99111WIW0)

M3IARY s|eaddy

Jo uosisaditeyd

‘(€207 03 6T0T ‘TT0C
03 0007)uawspnquQ Aysianiun
Jawnsuo) 'y 1yo8uay) |euoneN

1adie| ‘smeT Jo Jojpyoeg  f

aJow
JO SWJ3) dAIINIISUO0D
934y} 404 POAIDS
Apeauje s1030341p
1uapuadapul

jouosealayl | Suipjo-yaseys uonisod jua.in) 2oualIadx] uoneanpy aweN uonIsod




ou| A8ojouyda]

U]

A3ojouyda] jewuayl

allenwy /030 '€

TINSY

‘92IAIBG JBWOISND) ‘dA T

sliasnyoesselp Jo

‘0D Ayisianiun ‘Suiiaaui8ul dleN 1032341Q
I'N 0 | [ewJsyl dJiejnwy Quejnsuo) T [ 1o|og ‘BundyieN ‘dA T [EJIUBYI3IA Ul aYd ‘T1YyD ‘NA | Juspuadapu
NHLN ‘493u3)
uol1eanp3 [eJauao
2Jo0w
JO SWJ) AAIINIISUOD
934Y3 4O} PaAIIS
Apeauje s1030341p
1uspuadapul
Jjouoseasayl | Suipjo-yaseys uonisod uauIn) 9oualiadx] uoneanpy awe uonisod

x

Appendix

70



x

Appendix

I'N

‘P17 0D 91ewilued ‘4osiaiadng

Jedouls yueg
J0 4010341 SunayJew
pajesdaiu| /uolsIAIQ
ddUueUl{ 21U0J103|]
/auapuaiuiiadng
|eJauan

[eloueuld |lelay
99111wwo) JusawAed
21U0J123|3 uemie]
‘Jauanuo) Aindag
uoinesodio)
AYVIASY3 ‘ 4o8euen
|eJauan pue uewlieyd
P11 0D

SuIp|OH uBWISaAU|

QY¥VOASY3 ‘uewliey)

92J3WWO0)

ssauisng jo Jojayoeg g
Aisianiun
193N Wouy
Aduejunodoy o1jqnd

‘saIpnig aienpelo ‘T

d|ewa
(8un)
nr-8ull ‘NIHD

J103123.1Q

1uapuadapul

aJow
JO SWJ3) dAIINIISUO0D
934y} 404 POAIDS
Apeauje s1030341p
1uspuadapul

Jo uoseal ay|

8uip|o-yaseys

uonisod jua.in)

ouaIadXx]

uoneonp3

awepN

uonisod

71



epeue)
‘uewpall{ 1y uewpal4
‘1a8euen Upny 6
jyueg Dg1) ‘493eue|p
suolle|ay J01saAU| '8
‘P17 0D $31314N23S
193 @110 5,040
‘193euelp JUNOY  /
P11 0D
Aeges swoydd ‘04D 9
s3ulp|oH
sedouls ‘@3140 5,05

‘Ja8eue|n 1UNOJIY  °G

aJow
JO SWJ3) dAIINIISUO0D
934y} 404 POAIDS
Apeauje s1030341p
1uspuadapul

jouosealayl | Suipjo-yaseys uonisod jua.in) 2oualIadx] uoneanpy aweN uonIsod

X | Appendix

2



Appendix 7

Grape King Bio Ltd.
THE Procedures for Election of Directors

Approved by the Shareholders’ Meeting held on July 15, 2021
Article 1
Except as otherwise provided by law and regulation or by the Company’s Article of Incorporation,

elections of directors shall be conducted in accordance with these procedures.

Article 2

The cumulative voting system shall be used for election of the directors at the Company. Except as
otherwise provided by law and regulation, each share will have voting rights in number equal to the
directors to be elected, and may be cast for a single candidate or split among multiple candidates.
Attendance card numbers printed on the ballots may be used instead of recording the names of
voting shareholders. The shareholders may be exercising their voting rights via electronic or physically
present for the election of directors at the Company. Upon above exercise voting rights via electronic,

shall be via electronic voting platform appointed by the Company.

Article 3

Elections of directors shall be elected at the shareholder’s meeting from a list of candidates, in
accordance with the candidate nomination system. The number of directors will be as specified in the
Company's articles of incorporation with voting rights separately calculated for independent and
non-independent director positions. Those receiving ballots representing the highest numbers of
voting rights will be elected separately and sequentially according to their respective numbers of
votes. When more than two persons receive the same number of votes, thus exceeding the specified
number of positions, they shall draw lots to determine the winner, with the Chair drawing lots on

behalf of any person not in attendance.

Article 4
Before the election begins, the Chair shall appoint a number of persons with shareholder’s status to

perform the respective duties of vote monitoring and counting personnel.

Article 5
The voter must enter the candidate's account name in the "candidate" column of the ballot. However,
when the candidate is a governmental organization or juristic-person shareholder, the name of the

governmental organization or juristic-person shareholder shall be entered in the column for the
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candidate's account name in the ballot paper, or both the name of the governmental organization or
juristic-person shareholder and the name of its representative may be entered. When there are
multiple representatives, the names of each respective representative shall be entered. The
shareholders’ meetings convened by any other person having the convening right, he/she shall act as

the chairman of that meeting provided.

Article 6

A ballot is invalid under any of the following circumstances:

1. The ballot is not prepared by a person with the right to convene.

2. A blank ballot is placed in the ballot box.

3. The writing is unclear and indecipherable or has been altered.

4. The candidate whose name is entered in the ballot does not conform to the director candidate list.
5. Contains two or more candidates.

6. Other words or marks are entered in addition to the candidate's account name allotted.

Article 7
The voting rights shall be calculated on site immediately after the end of the poll, and the results of

the calculation shall be announced by the Chair on the site.

Article 8

The Board of Directors of the Company shall issue notifications to the persons elected as directors.

Article 9
These procedures and any amendments hereto, shall be implemented after approval by a

shareholders’” meeting.



Appendix 8

Shareholdings of All Directors

1. Minimum shares held by the Directors and recorded shares held

Title

Minimum legally-held shares

Recorded shares held

Directors

8,888,242 shares

27,364,300

2. Directors Shareholding Structure in detail

Title Name Recorded shares held
Chairman Shenglin Andrew Tseng 6,511,244
Director Mei-Ching Tseng 2,954,117
UNI-PRESIDENT ENTERPRISES
Director CORP. Representative: 11,851,000
Kao Shiow Ling
Director Yen-Shiang Huang 203,000
Director Jue-Jia Chang 1,538,386
Director Chih-Sheng Chang 2,093,957
Director Hsing-Chun Chen 1,559,596
Director Chih-Wei Lai 653,000
Independent Director Feng-I Lin 0
Independent Director Ching-Pu Chen 0
Independent Director I-Fan Miao 0
Chen Jing Ning 0

Independent Director

Note: as of April 1, 2024
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